
Date Published:19 October 2020     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 21 October 2020 at 1.30 pm

Please note that this meeting will be held remotely and can be
viewed on the County Council website at
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Chair

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting on 16 September 2020.

Chair

4  WORK PLAN (Pages 9 - 10)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration at 
future meetings.

Chair

5  DISTRICT MEMBER FEEDBACK (Pages 11 - 12)

To note the attached local meetings outcome report and action agreed at 
point 7.

District representatives on the Committee are encouraged to use this 
standing item to feedback on key economic growth points/issues/actions 
from their respective councils.

Chair

6  GOLDEN VALLEY PROJECT (Pages 13 - 58)

To receive an update presentation on the Golden Valley project.

Tim Atkins



    

7  GFIRST LEP ITEM (Pages 59 - 72)

To consider the attached report.

Mally Findlater

8  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of future meetings:

18 November 2020
20 January 2021
10 March 2021

Chair

Membership –  Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair), 
Cllr Stephen Davies, Cllr Ben Evans, Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair), Cllr Klara Sudbury and 
Cllr Sajid Patel Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Paul McCloskey, Cllr John Murphy, Cllr Gina Blomefield and 
Cllr Simon Pickering

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Acting Monitoring 
Officer, (Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior 
to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 16 September 2020 at the .

PRESENT:
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair)
Cllr Stephen Davies
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Klara Sudbury

Cllr Nicky Packer
Cllr Paul McCloskey
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr John Murphy
Cllr Gina Blomefield
Cllr Simon Pickering

Officers in attendance: Simon Excell, Colin Chick, Mally Findlater and Andrew 
Cummings

1. APOLOGIES 

No apologies were received.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes were approved as a correct record.

4. WORK PLAN 

The Committee discussed the following points in relation to its ongoing work plan:

 It was suggested that the Committee may want to consider an update on 
the Golden Valley project that had been discussed at the mornings 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) meeting. 
Members requested this to be presented at their meeting in October.

 It was agreed that the Chair, Vice Chair and Cllr Pickering would work 
together to plan an item on carbon neutral housing, to include modular 
builds and retrofitting existing housing. This item would be tentatively 
added to the work plan for November 2020.

 A member requested that the Committee either had a regular review of 
the Economic Recovery Plan or at least one in depth update before the 
end of the year.

 It was acknowledged that young people were going to be the most 
economically affected post-Covid, but that the GEGJC should also be 
considering the impact on the older work force who may need to reskill in 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

order to re-enter the work place after facing redundancy. It was agreed 
that the Chair of GEGJC would take this away as an action.

5. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE (GEGJC) 
UPDATE 

5.1 The Chair invited Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Chair of the GEGJC, to present this 
item and Members noted the following points:

 The update on the Golden Valley project was very interesting and 
exciting news for the County. Gloucestershire had ranked number one 
cyber location for the UK and within the Western Gateway. The new 
facilities would be a key landmark project for the entire county and the 
South West. This was a really exciting project, giving Gloucestershire a 
chance to take real leadership in this sector. It was highlighted as a good 
item for scrutiny to look into in more depth going forward.

 It was acknowledged that the presentation for this item was not received 
until late the day before the meeting but assured that scrutiny members 
received it at the same time as the GEGJC. It was reiterated that 
members of the Scrutiny Committee are invited to view the morning 
meeting and that the YouTube recording remains available online after.

 The recovery process still remained unclear due to the constantly 
changing situation. It was crucial that Gloucestershire remained fluid in its 
reaction to recovery.

 At the meeting in July, the Committee agreed on a ‘three C’s approach’ to 
economic recovery – Collaboration (working in partnership across the 
county and not leave any gaps), Communication (what is happening and 
keeping people updated) and Confidence (that we can come through this 
and that the county will be strong and successful following the pandemic).

 The Senior Officer Group had agreed on three key areas to focus on 
initially – skills, the visitor economy and joint lobbying. The Committee 
have received good feedback externally that GCC as a public 
organisation was on the front foot with its recovery planning. 

 It was reinforced that any recovery plan could not be fixed; it needed to 
remain flexible and responsive due to the unclear and developing 
situation. There were many key questions that could not be answered at 
the moment.

5.2 A member stressed that the travel times highlighted in the Golden Valley 
presentation were by road and not public transport. It was absolutely critical 
if the whole county were going to feel the benefit of this project that existing 
public transport travel times were improved and more routes were added to 
reach everyone. It was also highlighted that some of the travel times from 
other parts of the country were over ambitious and needed to be revisited.

5.3 In response, the Chair confirmed the point about the travel times was picked 
up in the GEGJC meeting and agreed we needed to be absolutely accurate 
with this information in the project marketing, overselling it could potentially 
have the opposite effect.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

5.4 It was questioned whether, in light of this project, Gloucestershire should 
have the ambition to create a world class university by improving the existing 
University of Gloucestershire. It was advised that there was hope that the 
project would have a positive effect on the University, potentially seeing it 
become one of the country’s centres of excellence. It was noted that whilst 
the Council would be having these conversations, ceasing the opportunity 
was as much down to the University itself than anything else. In addition, it 
was agreed that it would be great to involve surrounding universities as well 
who offer qualifications in this field.

5.5 In relation to the economic recovery, a member raised that the business 
community wanted to see action, not just discussions and therefore having 
some sort of timeline associated with the recovery planning would be helpful 
communication. 

5.6 In response, it was reiterated that there was no simple or easy method on 
recovering from the pandemic. It was agreed that the communications on 
this needed to be improved and that some timelines would be useful. It was 
stressed however that any long-term timelines wouldn’t be particularly useful 
due to the changing situation and they did not want to over promise. 

ACTION: Cllr Molyneux to feedback to the GEGJC to look into

6. BUSINESS RATES POOL 

6.1 The Chair invited Andrew Cummings, Strategic Director of Resources at 
Stroud District Council, to present the report. The Committee noted the 
following points:

 The report reflected how the Business Rates Pool performed last 
financial year (2019/20), how the pandemic was affecting it in the current 
year and what the future for business rates pooling looked like in the 
coming years.

 The Pool worked by pooling all the growth that the different councils had, 
above the base line that was set by Government for business rate 
collection, together and applying the relevant formulas. This resulted in 
the levy that needed to be paid to Government being a lot less than if all 
the billing authorities paid their rates separately.

 In the last financial year, across Gloucestershire, the total pool growth 
above the baseline was £19.4 million and by applying the accounting 
mechanisms, the gain from pooling (i.e. the money saved locally that 
would have had to be paid back to central government) was £4.85 million. 
This was then shared between GCC, the Strategic Economic Fund and 
the district councils.

 Looking forward to the next years forecasting, one of the impacts of 
Covid was back in March 2020 when the Government announced 
financial relief policies, it gave retail, leisure and hospitality sectors (with 
no limit on the size of the business) a 100% reduction in business rates 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

for this financial year. For Gloucestershire, this meant there was a £107m 
reduction of business rates being billed.

 Last year (2019/20) the amount billed was £228m, this year (2020/21) it 
had been forecast to be around £121m, which was clearly a very 
significant reduction.

 The good news for the Pool was that central Government had agreed to 
reimburse the loss to local authorities. In a way this had removed some 
risk from the Pool as it was now covered directly from central 
Government for the year.

 The main impact Covid may have on the reimbursement was that if a 
business ceased trading and therefore leave their premises, authorities 
would not receive repaid rates for that premise.

 The most recent monitoring figures produced suggested that there will 
still be a Pool gain this year of £4.5m which was very similar to last year.

 The future of the Pool in future years will depend on what central 
government decides to do nationally. For some time now, they have 
discussed plans to redistribute growth around the country.

 At the GEGJC meeting this morning, it was agreed that the section 151 
officers for each council would begin to consider whether Pooling should 
continue in Gloucestershire going forward. 

 Steve Mawson, Executive Director of Corporate Resources, highlighted 
to the Committee that considering where we thought we might be 
financially when Covid hit, this was a very positive position and forecast 
for the Pool. It was advised that it would be a shame to lose pooling but 
we do have to consider the options.

 The issue was, the base line had not kept up with the growth, there was 
still a debate that the money should stay in the system somewhere and 
whether local authorities should have access to it. 

 It was also noted that it was not a GEGJC decision to pool or not, it was 
an individual authority decision.

6.2 A member sought clarity on whether there was a risk that a local authority 
could withdraw from the Pool as it was within their own best interest, which 
would then have an impact on the Pool as a whole. It was reiterated that it 
was an individual authority decision and advised that the main risk for 
authorities when joining a Pool was that if an authority’s income fell below a 
certain percentage; they would be reimbursed by Government to cover the 
loss. If the authority was in Pool however, that percentage reduction had to 
apply across the board so there was a much higher threshold on what 
needed to be lost before Government would step in. If an individual authority 
was to leave, the current Pool would have to be disbanded and a new one 
created.

6.3 A member raised that landlords, who provided the premises for businesses 
to trade in, were not receiving any financial relief and if businesses moved 
out and ceased trading, they were left with the business rates burden. It was 
advised that whilst nothing could be done specifically through the business 
rates set up, officers would be gathering intelligence through the year to 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

understand where landlords were suffering and what sort of support was 
needed. This could then be tied into the economic recovery work.

7. BROADBAND 

7.1 The Chair opened the item by reminding the Committee that there was a 
substantial discussion with Mobile UK in November 2019 regarding mobile 
connectivity in the county. An update via Mobile UK’s website would be 
provided after the meeting via email, as much of their recent activity has had 
to focus on their Covid response, rather than moving forward on some of 
their projects. This item would therefore solely focus on broadband 
connectivity.

7.2 Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Economy, 
Education and Skills, was invited to present the report. The Committee were 
advised that as the Fastershire team were unable to attend today’s meeting; 
some questions may need to be taken away for a written response if they 
were particularly technical.

7.3 The report was taken as read and the following points were highlighted:

 The Fastershire Strategy was refreshed in 2019 and would now cover 
until 2022.

 The aspirations for the project had taken on a much sharper context 
now given the impacts of Covid.

 The Strategy was split into 5 phases. Phase 1 had now delivered 98% 
of Gloucestershire with super fast broadband, the remaining 
percentage were in the much harder to reach areas.

 To final phases of the 2019-22 Strategy were aimed at reaching that 
final 2/3% of the County through alternative methods such as the 
Fastershire Community Grant scheme, to make it more attractive for 
suppliers to come in and target these areas.

 On the whole, this had been a very successful project and it was 
hoped by 2022 that the final few percent would be covered.

7.4 A member highlighted that on the ground, the Gigaclear roll out was not 
happening as fast and as it was supposed to. There were still areas in their 
division that were being left without a suitable connection. 

7.5 It was advised that timescales on these projects were difficult as contractors 
would not completely understand the scale of the project until it was started 
and Gigaclear had faced a few issues which were sometimes out of their 
control. There had been examples of parish councils delaying on signing the 
required Wayleave (a contractual license to grant operators the right to 
install) or difficulty in getting enough local business demand to make up the 
grant and bring contractors into the area.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

7.6 A member had also noticed as issue of highways accidently hitting the 
broadband boxes as they were painted green and camouflaged into the road 
verges.

ACTION: Raise point with the Fastershire team

7.7 It was stressed that getting the connection did not appear to the end of 
resident’s broadband issues. Even when houses were connected up, many 
were still experiencing significant connection issues when trying to use their 
super fast connection.

7.8 In response, it was advised that connection issues could be due to a lot of 
reasons such as the environment in the home or the distance from the 
cabinet providing the connection. GCC, for example, experiences connection 
issues due to its server being homed out of the area. 

7.9 Members heard that the issue was raised during the morning GEGJC 
meeting that due to the pandemic (and general progression) people were 
becoming a lot more reliant on digital connectivity. It was acknowledged that 
there was a piece of work that needed to be done across society, and the 
public sector bodies may have to pick some of this up, on general education. 
There was an increasing need for GCC to provide educative support as well 
as providing the technology.

7.10 It was requested that these points were taken away for futher thought.

7.11 A member questioned in the report about the commercial deployment 
project. It was advised that City Fibre were a new commercial company 
coming into the market and their aim was to provide 100% of dwellings in the 
specific area with full fibre broadband, even those that have currently been 
unreachable by the Fastershire programme. If there were some dwellings 
that they were unable to reach however, these areas would be covered by 
GCC or through other means such as the community grants.

7.12 There was a final question from the Committee on whether the Fastershire 
programme and 5G roll out would interrelate and noted this would be 
particularly relevant for those areas struggling to get a broadband 
connection.

7.13 The Committee noted that the two roll outs did not interrelate but the 
member was right to highlight that 5G could indeed plug gaps in the county 
that were struggling to get a reliable broadband connection.

8. GFIRST LEP 

8.1 The Chair invited Mally Findlater, Programme Manager for the GFirst LEP, to 
present the reports.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

8.2 Members noted that the first report was on the Quarter 1 performance data 
for the final year of the Local Growth Fund projects. This reflected that the 
LEP were working closely with the accountable body and were on track to 
deliver the programme on time and on budget. Some of the outputs were 
delayed due to Covid and economic issues but overall the programme was 
working well.

8.3 A member queried whether the LEP were aware of how much unfulfilled 
demand there currently was for employment land. It was advised that each 
time a project comes forward that would deliver employment land/business 
units, the LEP would ask the question – what is the demand in that area.

8.4 It was a very difficult question to answer in the early stages of a project, 
there was sometimes a view of ‘build it and they will come’ but the LEP use 
past experience, speak with agents and the Inward Investment Team look at 
queries that they receive to try and gain an understanding. It would be 
impossible to exactly quantify the demand but they try their best to answer 
this as well as possible for each relevant project.

8.5 The second paper outlined the progress for the Getting Building Fund. 
Members noted that this fund was announced by government and the LEP 
has eight days to turn around a project list to bid for the funding. They used 
the existing Capital Investment Pipeline and the existing ‘long list’ of projects 
held by the LEP in response to open calls earlier in the year. They contacted 
the projects (who fit the criteria for the fund) to see if they were able to 
deliver within the extremely challenging timeframe (18 months).

8.6 It was stressed at this point that the LEP heavily relied on the district and 
county councils to continue engaging and maintaining the Capital Investment 
Pipeline with projects that could release economic growth, especially for 
circumstances like this. The very short turnaround on bidding for this fund 
could not have been met without that existing pipeline of projects.

8.7 The LEP now had a robust list of good projects but were waiting on the 
Government to release the grant conditions so the funds could start to flow 
into the projects.

8.8 A member raised a query as to why there were no successful projects in 
Stroud and whether there was any learning the district could take away for 
future bids. It was advised it had nothing to do with locality; it was just 
unfortunate that none of the Stroud projects fitted the particular criteria that 
Government were asking for. The LEP were very happy to feedback to 
individual projects that were not successful if that would be helpful. 

8.9 To give some more context around the process for selecting projects, 
Members noted that the presentation at their meeting in September 2019, 
outlined the Assurance Framework which the process flows from. If there are 
no other criteria set by Government for the fund, then the general criteria will 
be used (that were based on the Assurance Framework principals).

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

8.10 Once a short list had been created, the LEP would use a scoring matrix to 
select the successful projects. Again, the scoring matrix used would depend 
on the criteria available for the fund. For example, the last round of funding 
(Getting Building Fund) had a very specific set of criteria; therefore the 
scoring matrix had to be weighed very heavily on the Government provided 
criteria. 

8.11 An example was given that one of the Government criteria was the project 
had to be deliverable in 18 months. This was obviously unachievable for a lot 
of exciting projects and therefore they didn’t move forward in the selection 
process.

8.12 Additional information was requested by the Committee so they could have 
more of an understanding of which projects were chosen and why. The 
information provided until this point had been around the process but not 
about what the scoring matrixes included and how the individual projects 
were scored.

8.13 It was stressed by the Chair that the Committee would struggle to improve its 
scrutiny of the LEP if the relevant information was not provided. 

ACTION: GFirst LEP to provide additional information to the 
Committee to illustrate the scoring mechanism, whilst 
maintaining the confidentiality of the decisions of the LEP 
Board sub committee.

8.14 It was advised that the LEP provided a lot of detail to the project leads on 
what the application for funding would require in order to be considered. 

ACTION: GFirst LEP to share expression of interest form and 
guidance

8.15 A member suggested that a useful exercise, at a future meeting, would be to 
have a discussion around a successful project example so the Committee 
could see a working example of the process.

ACTION: GFirst LEP

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 15:30.

Page 8



ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2020-21

21 October 2020 18 November 2020 20 January 2021

Update on the Golden Valley project
Tentative: Carbon Neutral Housing 
(to include modular development and 

retrofitting existing housing)

GFirst LEP Item
Getting Building Fund selection and 

implementation processes

GFirst LEP Item
Economic Update

POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Social Mobility update 2021 5 Taxi Licensing task group report

2 National Policy Development (including industrial 
strategy)

6 Retail – strategy for the future of the high 
street

3 Housing availability (incorporating a review of 
potential changes to the Joint Core Strategy)

7 Covid impact on employment and 
businesses in the County

4 Skills / work force development post-Covid (with a 
particular focus on young people and over-50 age 
group)

8

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LOCAL MEETINGS – OUTCOME REPORT
AUGUST 2020

1. In June 2017 the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 
(GEGSC) agreed that the two ‘stand alone’ Committee meeting dates in February 
and October would be held at one of the six district council offices (arranged on a 
rotational basis).

2. This aimed to provide an opportunity for each authority to present to the Scrutiny 
Committee an overview of the economic growth related issues in their area, and 
for all members of the respective district to attend the meeting and present 
questions on local issues.

3. In addition, the Scrutiny Committee would aim to gain a better understanding of 
the issues impacting the economic growth agenda for each district and consider 
how engagement between the GFirst LEP, the Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Joint Committee (GEGJC), the GEGSC and District Authorities might be 
improved.

4. The final of these meetings was held on 26 February 2020 and following this, a 
report was produced to provide the Committee with a summary of points and 
issues raised at all six local meetings (appendix 1).

5. This report was received as an information item at the Committees’ meeting on 2 
July 2020. Members noted the report and were asked submit, via email, any 
comments or observations which would be collated and submitted to the following 
bodies:

a) The GEGJC (via Cllr Cromwell as Scrutiny Chair);
b) Gloucestershire County Council (via the scrutiny update report to full council); 

and
c) All six District Authorities (via their local representatives on this Committee).

6. The following observations were received:

Cllr Gina Blomefield

“Last year I attended the Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee Meeting held at 
Stroud District Council. I thought it was very professionally run, incredibly 
interesting and I learnt a great deal from the experience.

I certainly support the idea of 'visiting' other Gloucestershire satellite councils in 
this way as I think it not only gives a greater democratic width to the process but 
also gives those councils a platform on which to present items of particular 
interest to their community.”

Cllr Brian Robinson

“Looking at the reports they seem to describe a snapshot in time that developed 
along with economic issues as the meetings progressed. They also demonstrate 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



to me how different each district is with ambitions developed from their own 
circumstances. The exception being Tewksbury, Cheltenham and Gloucester that 
have developed a common joint local plan. However within these differences all 
areas were also seeking economic growth. 

As a member of the Forest of Dean District I did not feel the session based in the 
Forest put sufficient weight on improving educational outcomes for young people 
at 16 or the opportunity arising from Hartpury University based in the district. This 
demonstrates how the challenge of economic growth in any place can be 
described through different lens so that education, housing, transport, funding, 
planning can all bring a different perspective on the challenge and possible 
solutions. It feels quite often that we are shaping the economic needs to capture 
a possible funding pot or large employer needs or simply to deliver external 
targets on housing. This is practical particularly because some fundamental 
problems such as traffic congestion or inadequate schools can only be resolved 
with national funding.  

As a result I do not feel the experience of the meetings allow me to draw any firm 
conclusions. It would suggest however that a one size fits all strategy for 
Gloucestershire is unlikely to meet the needs of all the district areas. It could be 
seen as an urban v rural issue but many people live in rural areas and choose to 
work in cities, and leisure activities draw people in the opposite direction so these 
economies are mutually dependent on each other. For most people the Local 
Authority borders are insignificant and they would be largely unaware they had 
crossed from one to the other than the colour of their waste bin. Clearly there is a 
lot going on in each district and the LEP is tasked with developing a 
Gloucestershire wide strategic plan for the economy but for me the impact of 
meeting in different locations highlighted the different paths each council is on 
rather than common goals. 

Rather than repeat the process of meeting at each location I would prefer to see 
topics we cover at Scrutiny given a local lens so we can see what impact would 
be on different areas. This is however only one view it might still make sense to 
look across different views based on deprivation, ethic minority or age 
opportunities. Each district is fortunate enough to have a representative at our 
meetings. This does not necessarily apply to the other groups.”

7. On suggestion by the Chair, the Committee have agreed that going forward; 
there will be a standing item on the Committee’s agenda to give district members 
an opportunity to feedback on key economic growth points/issues/actions from 
their respective councils.

Page 12



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 1 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

Progress from GEGJC December 2019 
Gloucestershire Cyber & Digital Innovation Value Proposition  

1. Establish a start – finish specialist team 
 

2. Create strong evidence base & economic to evidence  & 
support growth of cyber tech / digital in county  
 

3. Engage with tech businesses, to gain ‘deep understanding 
of market / demand’ 
 

4. Support Cyber central investment / Market engagement 
 

5. Create high quality marketing / promotional material of 
Gloucetsrshire’s position on regional and national stage in 
the sector 

P
age 14



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 3 

P
age 15



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 4 

Gloucestershire – largest concentration of businesses in UK outside London 

P
age 16



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 5 

Scale: Gloucestershire is the second Largest Cyber 
Location Nationally… 
 

In gross terms Gloucestershire has the second largest number 
of cyber firms in the country, with only London home to more 

Productivity 

P
age 17



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

Digital Tech Sector 5 year growth 

15 October, 2020 6 

Digital Sector - scale 

High Value Employment Growth - Significant 

P
age 18



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 7 

Golden Valley Development – Home of Cyber Central to be catalyst for growth 

P
age 19



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 8 

P
age 20



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 9 

UK Cyber Security sector doubles 
in 2 years now valued at £8.2bn 

UK’s fastest growing industry 

Establishing UK as science & 
innovation superpower 

UK mission to be cyber global 
leader 

Cheltenham / Gloucestershire has 
leading role in that mission 

 

OPPORTUNITY 

MATT WARMAN 
MINISTER FOR DIGITAL INFASTRUCTURE 

P
age 21



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 10 

Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR)  
 

• strengthening UK’s COVID-19 economic recovery 
• levelling-up economic opportunity 
• making the UK a scientific superpower 
• strengthening the UK’s place in the world 
 

 
 

These are also integral to the: 
 
• Industrial Strategy,   
• Integrated Review (IR) of security, defence& foreign policy  
• Cyber Security Strategy 
• UK R&D Roadmap 

 
 
 

 
 

Leading mission to be UK Scientific Superpower 

P
age 22



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 11 

THE VISION 

P
age 23



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 12 

Strengthening the planning framework – The Golden Valley Garden Community  

Supplementary Planning Document 
 

Homes England  
Garden Community 

P
age 24



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 13 

Western Gateway – Gloucestershire’s leading role  

P
age 25



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 14 

Cyber CentralUK plays a leading role in the WGP Applied 
Digital Accelerator proposals being put to central 
government. 
 
• Provides an integrated network of leading research, 

teaching, innovation and enterprise assets focused on 
the development and  application of digital 
technologies 
 

• Plays Central role of delivering an additional £56 billion 
of the UK economy by 2030 – set out in Western 
Gateway Powerhouse prospectus 

Western Gateway Powerhouse Applied Digital Accelerator 

National & Regional recognition – Cyber CentralUK & Gloucestershire 

P
age 26



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

 

15 October, 2020 15 

P
age 27



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 16 

P
age 28



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 17 

P
age 29



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 18 

FOR YOUR EYES ONLY 

P
age 30



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 19 

V1 GCHQ 

V2 EXTENSIVE CYBER ECO-STSTEM  

V3 HEART OF INNOVATION AND ACADEMIA 

V4 LOCATION & ACCESSIBILITY 

V5 STRONG LEADERSHIP & INVESTMENT 

V5 SCALE  

THE 5Vs 
Layers of Cheltenham’s Value Proposition 

P
age 31



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 20 

V1 GCHQ 

• Home of GCHQ & National Cyber Security Focal Point 

 

• Centre of UK Cyber Security & eco-system  

 

• 6,000 employees, extensive commercial supply chain 

 

• NCSC innovation & accelerator programmes 

 

• 19 Cyber ACES 

P
age 32



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 21 

V2 EXTENSIVE CYBER ECO-SYSTEM 
Rich Talent Pipeline  

P
age 33



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 22 

• 19 universities within 
75min drive 

• 5 Cyber ACE-CSRs  

• Bristol, Birmingham, 
Cardiff, Oxford, Warwick 

• Pioneering schools, further 
and higher education 
cyber programmes 

V3 HEART OF  
INNOVATION,  
ACADEMIA & TALENT 

P
age 34



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 23 

V4 LOCATION & 
ACCESSIBILITY 

• M5 J10 & J11 
• North - South Artery 

 
• A40 East – West corridor 

 
• Gloucestershire, Bristol & 

Birmingham Airports 
 

• Mainline Station 
 

• ALL within 1 mile 
 

Connecting South, South West & Wales to 
Midlands & the North 

P
age 35



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 24 

Direct trains to UK core cities 

 
 
‘Within 2 hours of almost everywhere’ 

V4 LOCATION & ACCESSIBILITY 
Heart of the UK 

Seriously Connected 

P
age 36



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 25 

• Cyber Leadership Board 

• Cheltenham Borough Council spends 
£37.5M on 45 ha 

• LEP secure £22M GD3 funds  

• Cheltenham Borough Council £180m 
investment in housing delivery. 

• CPO powers for land assembly 

• £220M HIF for M5 J10 

• County Council leading transport works 

• UK Government invest £1.9bn in cyber 

 
 

V5 STRONG LEADERSHIP & INVESTMENT 

P
age 37



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 26 

V5 SCALE 

P
age 38



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 27 

SILICON VALLEY 1938 

P
age 39



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 28 

SILICON VALLEY TODAY 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE  TOMORROW?  

P
age 40



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

CHELTENHAM’S SP  - THE HONEY POT 
 

15 October, 2020 29 

H1 GCHQ INNOVATION 

H2 ACADEMIA, R&D, INCUBATION 

H3 BUSINESS 

H4 START UPS 

H5 THE HONEY POT 

H6 SKILLS & TALENT 

H7 THE AGENCY 

P
age 41



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

15 October, 2020 30 

H1 

• Home of GCHQ & NCSC 

• UK Cyber Innovation Centre  

• Accelerator & Incubators 

• UK leading innovators  

• Co-working in new ways 

GCHQ INNOVATORS 

P
age 42



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

15 October, 2020 31 

H2 

• Academic Centres of Excellence 
(ACEs) 

• Research & Development 

• Knowledge Exchange 

• Business Incubation 

• Brightest minds supporting 
innovation 

ACADEMIA, R&D, INCUBATION 

H1 GCHQ INNOVATORS 

P
age 43



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

BUSINESS 

15 October, 2020 32 

H3 BUSINESS BY INVITATION 

H2 ACADEMIA, R&D, INCUBATION 

H1 GCHQ INNOVATORS 

• Co-working with leading business 

• Capacity and commercial solutions 

• Supercharging growth in sector 

P
age 44



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

BUSINESS 

15 October, 2020 33 

H3 

• Co-working with leading business 

• Capacity and commercial solutions 

• Supercharging growth in sector 

BUSINESS BY INVITATION 

H2 ACADEMIA, R&D, INCUBATION 

H1 GCHQ INNOVATORS 

P
age 45



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

START UPS 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

BUSINESS 

15 October, 2020 34 

H4 START UPS 

• Looking to the future 

• Supported workspace 

• World leading eco-system 

P
age 46



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

START UPS 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

BUSINESS 

15 October, 2020 35 

H4 START UPS 

H5 

• Free Space  

• Access to all 

• Heart of innovations & ideas 

• Events  

• Skills programmes & teaching space 

 

THE HONEY POT 

HONEY POT 
INNOVATIVE CORE 

P
age 47



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

CAFÉS,  
RESTAURANTS 

& RETAIL 

START UPS 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

BUSINESS 

15 October, 2020 36 

H4 START UPS 

H5 THE HONEY POT 

Building Utopia 

• Free Space  

• Access to all 

• Heart of innovations & ideas 

• Events  

• Skills programmes & teaching space 

 

HONEY POT 
INNOVATIVE CORE 

P
age 48



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

START UPS 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

BUSINESS 

15 October, 2020 37 

H4 START UPS 

H5 THE AGENCY  

Building Utopia 

• Spy museum / attraction 

• Espionage  

• Cyber history & future 

• Interactive learning   

• Gaming / tech escape rooms 

• National centre 

 

CAFÉS,  
RESTAURANTS 

& RETAIL 

HONEY POT 
INNOVATIVE CORE 

THE AGENCY 
 

Spy museum & 
attraction 

P
age 49



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

START UPS 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

BUSINESS 

15 October, 2020 38 

H4 START UPS 

H5 THE HONEY POT 

Building Utopia 

CAFÉS,  
RESTAURANTS 

& RETAIL 

SKILLS & 
TALENT 

THE AGENCY 
 

Spy museum & 
attraction 

HONEY POT 
INNOVATIVE CORE 

H6 SKILLS & TALENT 

• Skills programmes  

• Teaching Space 

• Development programmes  

• Apprenticeships  

• Degree courses  

• Talent development      

 

P
age 50



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 39 

START UPS 

GCHQ 
INNOVATORS 

ACADEMIA 
R&D 

PRIMES & 
SMES 

BUSINESS  

Building Utopia 

H7 PRIMES & SMEs 

H5 THE HONEY POT 

• Scale ups   

• Hubs / Pods linking into innovation 
programmes 

• Prime / Corporate offices 

• Co-working spaces  

• Dedicated space / HQs 

 

CAFÉS,  
RESTAURANTS 

& RETAIL 

THE AGENCY 
 

Spy museum & 
attraction 

SKILLS & 
TALENT 

HONEY POT 
INNOVATIVE CORE 

H6 SKILLS & TALENT 

P
age 51



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

Sector growth during last six months 

15 October, 2020 40 

Gloucestershire’s & Region  
 
• Build Better Fund 4 out of 5 funded schemes  
• £11M focused around cyber & digital sector 
• Kings Quarter Gloucester – ‘the Forum’  
• Western Gateway applied digital accelerator  
• Interest in Golden Valley / Cyber Central 

 

National Alignment 
 
• Comprehensive Spending Review  
• R&D Roadmap 
• National Cyber Security Strategy 
• Industrial Strategy  
• Build Better Fund 
• National Economic Recovery – ‘Build Build Build’ 

P
age 52



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

Scaling up – Ready 21 
 
Get Building Better - £3.1M 

15 October, 2020 41 

P
age 53



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

CODA 
Ready 21  - scaling-up 

15 October, 2020 42 

P
age 54



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

WHAT’S HAPPENED 

15 October, 2020 43 

2015 

George Osborne 
CIC announced in 

Cheltenham  

2017 

JCS Adopted 
200 hectares allocated 

& safeguarded 

2017 

£22m transport 
infrastructure 

GD3 HMG / Gfirst LEP 

February 2020 

Transport Infrastructure 
works begin 
GCC leading 

August 2019 

CBC purchase 45 ha 
£37.5m 

June 2019 

Garden Community 
Cyber Central 

January 2020 

CBC & TBC  
CPO resolution  

March 2020 

M5 J10 HIF  
£220M 

P
age 55



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 44 

April 2020 

Launch 
Development & 

Investment Partner 

February 2021 

Partnership Live 

Jan 2021 

Site mobilisation 

November 2020 

Comprehensive 
Spending Review  

2024 onwards 

Cyber Central  
Global leader 

May 2021 

Cluster 1 & 2 Planning 

 2023 / 24 

Cluster 1 & 2 
operational 

WHAT’S NEXT 

P
age 56



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

 

15 October, 2020 45 

Golden Valley has the potential to become the UK’s home of cyber 
 

 
INNOVATION: Unique innovative heart, GCHQ’s innovation programmes integrated with academic talent 
and brightest business minds generating cutting edge commercial solutions  
 
UK FLAGSHIP: Pioneering campus & flagship development – UK mission to be global leader in sector 
 
POLICY AGLIMENT: CSR, IR, UK R&D Roadmap, National Cyber Security Strategy, Industrial Strategy, 
Western Gateway Prospectus, Levelling-up agenda 
 
ECOSYSTEM: Strong evidence base placing Gloucestershire as sector leader  
 
POST COVID19: Levelling-Up, lifestyle patterns, connectivity – Gloucestershire / Western Gateway ideal 
location 
  
 
Gloucestershire could be leading the UK mission to be a cyber global leader and scientific superpower 

P
age 57



The Golden Valley Development   Cyber Central UK 
 

15 October, 2020 46 

P
age 58



Gloucestershire Joint Economic Scrutiny Committee 
21st October 2020 

 
Report: Project Pipeline and Getting Building Fund – further information 
  
Presented by: Mally Findlater, Programme Manager, GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership 
Background 
 

Following the discussion on this topic on 16th 09 2020, this paper is to provide further information 

in response to questions by the committee. 

Context: (note: this information was provided in the paper for 16.09.20, any additional 

information is in blue) 

1. Capital Investment Pipeline  

1.1 Summary  

‘The Gloucestershire Economic Growth Capital Investment Pipeline’ (CIP) has been developed to 
identify all capital projects that have the potential to have a transformational impact on the 
economy of Gloucestershire. The CIP is a living document, actively managed by the Senior Officer 
Group of the GEGJC which aims to provide a comprehensive view of all capital projects (including 
infrastructure/regeneration projects) which could make a substantial and well evidenced 
contribution to economic growth. Identified priorities from this process are used to inform the 
business case selection process conducted by the LEP Board. The CIP is funding source neutral. 
https://www.gfirstlep.com/project-pipeline/ 

 
Following calls during 2019, an Investment Portfolio ‘long list’ was established with 32 projects with a 

total value of £265m. In order to prepare for future opportunities, and to align with local strategies 

(including the Local Industrial Strategy), a number of sector specific mini ‘masterplans’ have been 

produced with the Business Groups. In addition to other strategies (Rail, transport etc.) this will 

provide extra context for the prioritization and development stage of the pipeline once more detail 

has been received from Government on UKSPF (or other funding streams). 

This process was ‘paused’ temporarily during the current crisis related to Covid-19, whilst we 

awaited guidance from Government on the future of funding. (see below ‘Getting Building Fund’) 

 
1.2 Key Actions for 20/21 

• Development and prioritisation of project ideas in response to emerging strategies and 

opportunities, including the draft Local Industrial Strategy, and guidance from Government 

• Preparation of Investment plan by March 2021 

2.  Getting Building Fund (GBF) 
 
2.1  As a response to the unprecedented economic challenges related to the Covid crisis, 
Government announced a capital grant funding programme to be delivered through LEP’s to 
stimulate economic recovery through targeted infrastructure investment. The imperative was to 
process this opportunity at pace, which translated to an accelerated process for the LEP team that 
ensured due process was followed, but in a much shorter time than usual. 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7

https://www.gfirstlep.com/project-pipeline/


2.2  10.06.20 – Robert Jenrick MP (Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local 
Government) informed LEP’s of the fund. The application deadline was 18.06.20, giving just a week 
to respond. There were very specific criteria for consideration: 

 
we are willing to consider exceptional, additional shovel-ready capital projects which can be 
delivered within 18 months. Any new proposals must meet value for money standards agreed 
through local assurance frameworks and longer-running projects with a funding tail beyond 2022 are 
out of scope. Where considering new projects, these must deliver on two overarching objectives – 
driving up economic growth and jobs and supporting green recovery – and would primarily enable:  

 
• town and city centre modernisation through targeted infrastructure investments unleashing their 
longer-term economic potential;  

• investment in physical connectivity to improve the functioning of the local economy;  
• investment in innovation ecosystem including through improvements to research and development 
facilities driving up business productivity;  

• improvements to human capital;  

• improving digital connectivity, in order to support economic performance, particularly in more 
isolated areas.  

2.3  11.06.20 – David Owen notified the LEP Board, and informed them of the processes and 
principals that would be implemented – in line with our assurance framework, as follows: 

1. The existing project pipeline will form the basis of developing projects to go forward via this 
route 

2. By exception, where the criteria can be met, fully worked up projects not currently included 
may be brought into the pipeline 

3. The GFirst LEP Executive team will work with current scheme promoters to ensure that 
projects can meet the criteria 

4. The GFirst LEP Executive team will prioritise projects using the criteria set out in the letter 

5. A sub group of Board members and will discuss, prioritise and approve the final documents 
for submission. Any Board members with an interest in projects were not invited to join the 
sub group. 

2.4  11.06.20 – All projects on the long list were invited to express an interest to be included if 
they were able to confirm that they met the criteria. Those that expressed an interest were given 
the opportunity to provide extra, targeted information to inform the selection process.  

A scoring matrix was developed and implemented in line with the criteria specific to this fund. This 
was applied as above. 23 projects on the long list were approached. An initial sift against the criteria 
identified 15 as suitable to present to Government. 

2.5  18.06.20 – An ambitious application submitted for 15 projects with a value of £52m, with an 
estimation that we might be allocated in the region of £10m. Detail of the list submitted to 
Government is not in the public domain, as it is confidential and commercially sensitive, so is not 
included in this paper.  

2.6  23.06.20 – David Owen informed the LEP Board and Local Authority Leaders of the 
submission in confidence, including the list of projects 

Page 60



2.7 23.06.20 – Accountable Body informed of the submission in confidence, including the list of 
projects. This ensured full compliance with the Local Assurance Framework. 

2.8  02.07.20 – Government confirmed an allocation of £11.3m for Gloucestershire 

2.9  There followed intense negotiations with BEIS. The £11.3m was increased to £11.75m with 
the inclusion of £450K of unallocated LGF funds. The constraints of the funding envelope were 
challenging. The prioritised projects at the top of the list were asked to consider if they could deliver 
with less, if necessary. This gave some limited flexibility, and the final selection was made based on 
what was possible within the funds available. 

2.10  21.07.20 – David Owen informed the LEP Board of the results of the process as follows: 

The five projects that will be funded (subject to final approval by Government, due diligence, 

and LEP board approval) represent a diverse mix of projects: 

The ‘Minster Innovation Exchange’ with Cheltenham Borough Council – this low carbon 
modular construction will deliver innovative co-working space in central Cheltenham. It will 
provide a purpose-built performance, event and community venue, and connect to the High 
Street through upgraded historic linkages from the Cheltenham Minster grounds. It will also 
act as a pilot for developments at the Cyber Park – allocated £3.114 million.  

‘The Gloucestershire Applied Digital Skills Centre’ with Cirencester College – building a new 
landmark building, modelled on digital industries delivering the skills needed in the Cyber 
and Digital sectors – allocated £4.48 million. 

‘Cyber Incubation Units’ with Gloucestershire College – creating a range of new office space, 
shared and dedicated laboratories, workshops and co-working facilities designed specifically 
for high-tech, cyber-based entrepreneurs and innovators, with access to educational 
facilities – allocated £950,000. 

‘The Digital Innovation Farm’ with Hartpury University - creating new innovation and 
demonstration workspace for high growth SMEs in the growth phase already operating 
within the agri-tech sector to explore, test, trial, research and develop products, or enhance 
existing ones – allocated £1.25 million. 

‘A Construction Education Centre’ with the KW Bell Group Ltd in Cinderford - a brand new 

multipurpose conference and training facility to be based in the heart of the Forest of Dean. 

Thoughtfully designed to link the construction industry with education by providing a 

learning environment that is digitally advanced, safe, interactive and relevant. The Centre 

will be co-funded by a privately-owned family business, which has been in operation for over 

50 years, founded in, and operating within, the Forest of Dean – allocated £1.956 million. 

Process: These projects have worked closely and at pace with the LEP team to complete updated 
Business cases, submissions for due diligence assessment, scrutiny by the Investment Panel and 
consideration by the LEP Board for funding approval.  
 
2.11  18.08.20 – Board approval for: ‘Cyber Incubation Units’ with Gloucestershire College and 
‘The Gloucestershire Applied Digital Skills Centre’ with Cirencester College 
 

Page 61



2.12  01.09.20 – Board approval for: The ‘Minster Innovation Exchange’ with Cheltenham 
Borough Council and ‘A Construction Education Centre’ with the KW Bell Group Ltd in Cinderford 
 
2.13  15.09.20 – Board approval for: ‘The Digital Innovation Farm’ with Hartpury University  
 
Further information: (note the following information is to provide extra information in response to 

the discussion on 16.09.20)  

3. Further information on the selection processes applied 

3.1 Assurance Framework: The process as described above was consistent with the local Assurance 

Framework, which in turn is consistent with the National guidance. This has been audited and 

approved by BEIS. It was also presented to the Scrutiny committee and discussed in a previous 

meeting. 

See: https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/assurance-framework---v8-.pdf and 

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/assurance-framework-annexes-20-6-19.pdf 

See Annex C for a flow chart that illustrates the process. 

3.2 Scoring Criteria:  

The scoring criteria applied to this process was based on the standard criteria (see 3.2.5 of the 
Assurance Framework) as below: 

Initial proposals are then reviewed by a sub-group of the GFirst LEP Board. This assessment process 
sifts and prioritises the proposals using the criteria set out below. 

 

N.B. These criteria may be subject to change based on guidance from Government about the type 
of projects that are fundable and the amount of funding available 

Criteria 

• Economic growth potential 

• Demand and rationale 

• Strategy and context 

• Financial ‘ask’ within affordability parameters 

• Outputs – proportionate 

• Outcomes – proportionate 

• Private Sector match and/or investment levered in 

• Public Sector funds levered in 

• Potential to unlock other growth opportunities 

• Deliverability and sustainability 

• Risks that could impact on delivery 

 
For the Getting Building Fund, extra criteria were added to take account of the specific criteria 

from Government (see 2.2 above)  

The following provides a summary of all the criteria, with an indication of the weighting by 

importance. 

Page 62

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/assurance-framework---v8-.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/assurance-framework-annexes-20-6-19.pdf


category notes Weighting by importance 
(Very high / high / medium) 

Objective 1: Driving up 
Economic Growth (Growth & 
Jobs) 

Demonstrates realistic, viable 
case for economic growth based 
on sound evidence and 
rationale. Higher scores will be 
given where Growth is linked to 
Job creation and high value, 
accelerated growth 
 

Very High 

Objective 2: Green recovery 
 

Supporting GREEN recovery. This 
could be the primary or 
secondary output of the project  
 

High 
  

Priority 1: Town & city centre 
modernisation 

Town and city centre 
modernisation through targeted 
infrastructure investments 
unleashing their longer-term 
economic potential  
 

Medium 

Priority 2: Investment in 
physical connectivity 
 

Investment in physical 
connectivity to improve the 
functioning of the local economy  
 

Medium 

Priority 3: Investment in 
innovation ecosystem 
 

Investment in innovation 
ecosystem including through 
improvements to research and 
development facilities driving up 
business productivity 
 

Medium 

Priority 4: Improvements to 
human capital 
 

Skills related investments that 
will support Growth in Jobs 
and the economy over time 
 

Medium 
 

Priority 5: improving digital 
connectivity, 
 

Improving digital connectivity, in 
order to support economic 
performance, particularly in 
more isolated areas  
 

Medium 

Deliverability and Sustainability The level to which the 
deliverability by December 2021 
been demonstrated to include 
the credibility of the argument, 
lack of risk, governance, 
organisational capacity etc. 
 

Very High 

Capacity and Capability of the 
organization to deliver 

The level to which the 
organization has a track record 
with the LEP of efficient delivery 
of good project(s) to time and 
budget 

Medium 

Page 63



 

Strategy and Context  Consistent with strategic 
objectives in the SEP, The draft 
LIS, draft recovery plan and 
others (e.g. Western Gateway) 
 

Medium 

Financial ‘Ask’ for Capital within 
scope 

The amount asked for is more 
than £500K and less than £20m 
 

Yes / No answer 

Outputs - proportionate The direct output in itself 
appears to be good value for 
money. (e.g. buildings, 
infrastructure etc) 
 

Medium 

Outcomes - proportionate The direct (e.g. housing, jobs, 
qualifications) and indirect (e.g. 
housing or employment land 
unlocked, area brought into 
commercial use, risks mitigated 
against) outcomes appear to be 
appropriate and good value for 
money  
 

Medium 

Public or Private Sector match 
and/or investment leveraged in 

Amount and certainty of funds 
secured to match or to be 
leveraged related to funding ask 
 

Medium 

Risks that could impact on 
delivery 

 High 
 

 

3.2 In the meeting on 21.10.20, the committee will be provided with examples of the instances 
where the successful projects scored well, or less well, against the criteria, to provide an 
illustration of the decision-making process. Generic, non-specific, examples of reasons why other 
projects may have scored less well will also be provided, for illustration purposes.  

3.3 Further information on process and support to projects: 

Appendix 1: Business Case Template has been provided to illustrate the level of guidance provided 

to projects to assist them to respond appropriately to the opportunity. Based on a standard business 

case template, this was amended to reflect the criteria for this specific opportunity. 

Once indicative funding was confirmed by Government, the successful projects were supported 

through the Due Diligence process (undertaken by an independent consultant procured by the 

Accountable Body). Their projects were then reviewed in detail by the Investment Panel who 

provided recommendations and feedback to inform the LEP Board, who finally considered each 

project for funding approval.  

This paper is for information only. 
 
If you require further information please email: 
Mally.findlater@gfirstlep.com 

Page 64

mailto:Mally.findlater@gfirstlep.com


Appendix 1 

Business case template 

Capital Investment Proposal to GFirst LEP: Full Business 
Case 

(revised version for Local Infrastructure Stimulus Fund: 2020) 
 

 
Name of proposal 
(This should be the same as 
used for your EOI) 

 Date 

 
Name, 
organisation and 
contact details of 
Proposal Sponsor 
(person preparing the 
proposal) 

 

 
Date of review (for 

LEP use) 

  
Reviewed by 
(for LEP use) 

 

  
Please complete all the mandatory LISF sections clearly, providing as compelling a case as 
possible. In addition, complete all the other sections as fully as possible, in the time 
available. Successful projects will have the opportunity to refine the Business cases prior to 
further assessment  
 
Please submit to projects@gfirstlep.com 
   
If you require some further guidance on preparing your proposal, please contact GFirst LEP 
via the email projects@gfirstlep.com and one of our team will get back to you as soon as 
possible. 

 

 

1. The proposal (max 1,000 words) 

Describe your project clearly and succinctly. You are welcome to provide additional visual 
information as appendices in the form of maps, plans or diagrams to support your bid. Appendices 
should not include letters of support, or any additional text. 

 
Describe the vision and ambition you have for your project that will make it stand out as one the 
GFirst LEP Board should support. 

 
State exactly what it is, what it will do, when it will do it and what it will achieve. For example:  x 
project will be / do y. To achieve this we are seeking £x, to invest in y. As a result we will deliver xx 
outputs and xx outcomes, leveraging in £ xx from yy. If the project is for a limited time period 

Page 65

mailto:projects@gfirstlep.com
mailto:projects@gfirstlep.com


(minimum 5 years) provide an explanation. State why it represents good value for money for 
Gloucestershire and the Government. 
 
If your project facilitates / unlocks other investments (e.g in transport, skills or housing supply) by 
removing barriers, provide details. 

 
  

2. LISF: Deliverability (max 200 words) 
LISF funding is ONLY available to projects that will have completed delivery within 18months 
(by December 2021) – Provide details of the level of certainty for this project and why you are 
confident that it would be completed within scope. 
 

3. LISF: Objective one: Driving up Economic Growth (max 200 words) 
If your project meets this objective, explain how it will deliver economic growth based on sound 
evidence and rationale. Projects delivering job creation (or safeguarding jobs) and high value, 
accelerated growth will be prioritised.   
 

4. LISF: Objective two: Supporting GREEN recovery (max 200 words) 
If your project meets this objective, explain how it will deliver GREEN recovery for the county. 
This could be the primary or a secondary output of your project. Be specific. 

 

5. LISF: Priority one: Town & city centre modernisation (max 200 words) 

If your project meets this priority explain how it will deliver town and city centre modernisation 
through targeted infrastructure investments unleashing their longer-term economic potential  
 

6. LISF: Priority two: Investment in physical connectivity (max 200 words)  
If your project meets this priority explain how the Investment in physical connectivity will 
improve the functioning of the local economy 
 

7. LISF: Priority three Investment in innovation ecosystem (max 200 words) 
If your project meets this priority explain how the Investment in innovation ecosystem including 
through improvements to research and development facilities will drive up business productivity 
 

8. LISF: Priority four Improvements to human capital (max 200 words) 
If your project meets this priority explain how the investment in skills and people will 
support Growth in Jobs and the economy over time.  

 

9. LISF: Priority five improving digital connectivity (max 200 words) 
If your project meets this priority explain how the investment in digital connectivity will support 
economic performance, particularly in more isolated areas. 

 

10. Demand (max 250 words) 
Provide information on the need, opportunity or demand that this project is responding to. What is 
the evidence for this? Refer to the Five Foundations of productivity evidence base 
(https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_five-foundations-of-
productivity_evidence-report_2019-updated.pdf) Explain any current market failures and what 
would happen without intervention i.e. the impact of doing nothing 

Page 66

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_five-foundations-of-productivity_evidence-report_2019-updated.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_five-foundations-of-productivity_evidence-report_2019-updated.pdf


 

11. Rationale for intervention (max 250 words) 
How will your project address the need, opportunity or demand, and in doing so have a          
transformational impact?  

 

12. Options appraisal (max 150 words) 
Why is public funding necessary? Why can’t your project or part of your project be funded by other 
means? What other options have been considered that could meet the need, opportunity or 
demand? 

 

13. Strategic Growth (max 250 words) 
What is the strategic rationale for this investment? How does this project fit with and support the 
Strategic Economic Plan for Gloucestershire (https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-
vision/strategic-economic-plan/ ) and the draft Local Industrial Strategy 
(https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_draft_local-industrial-
strategy_2019-updated.pdf ) Which strategic partners have you engaged with to develop this 
project and are they supportive of it? Explain how it relates to other local, regional or national 
economic growth strategies, including the UK Industrial Strategy? 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/the-uks-industrial-strategy) 

 

14. Zero Carbon ambition for Gloucestershire (max 150 words) 
Gloucestershire has committed to zero carbon emissions by 2030.  How will your project contribute 
to this in the way it is built and operated? How will this be measured?  Identify the key indicators 
and quantified results that will be achieved by the project, and list any longer term strategic 
objectives (legacy) expected post project completion. 
 
 

15. Environmental Impact (max 150 words) 
Identify the opportunities the project can provide to improve/enhance the environment in the area 
where it is delivered (e.g. enhance bio-diversity, flood prevention, land remediation etc). Identify the 
key indicators and quantified results that will be achieved by the project, and list any longer term 
strategic objectives (legacy) expected post project completion. 
For larger construction projects working to the “Building with Nature” standard will be mandatory 
for LEP funding where applicable.   

 

16. Social Value (max 150 words) 
Is there a social value aspect to your project? How will it support the objective of inclusive growth 
across the county? How will this be measured? Identify the key indicators and quantified results 
that will be achieved by the project, and list any longer term strategic objectives (legacy) expected 
post project completion. 

 

17. Context: Local  (max 250 words)  
What is the wider local context for your project? How does it unlock, enhance or complement 
current or planned initiatives or investments, from any source, including current Growth Deal 
investments? If this is part of a wider package of investment, provide details.  

 

18. Context : Regional / National (max 200 words) 

Page 67

https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-vision/strategic-economic-plan/
https://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-vision/strategic-economic-plan/
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_draft_local-industrial-strategy_2019-updated.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_draft_local-industrial-strategy_2019-updated.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/the-uks-industrial-strategy


What is the wider regional and national context for your project?  Does it unlock, enhance or 
complement current or planned initiatives or investments in other LEP areas?  

 

19. Outputs (max 150 words plus the table)  

List the outputs that would be directly achieved from this investment e.g Jobs created or protected; 
Housing units completed; Qualifications; Apprenticeships completed; land reclaimed or developed; 
training or commercial floor space built or refurbished, length of new road etc. Government is 
particularly interested in outputs that lead directly to productivity gains and that support inclusive 
growth. For outputs that are difficult to quantify numerically in this format (e.g. improvements to a 
major traffic junction) a narrative can be used. The following provides examples, the list is not 
prescriptive, nor comprehensive, you should use the table to provide relevant information for your 
project. 
 
If you have scaled down options for your project provide clear information on each option 
 

Category Description Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 6+ 

Jobs (direct)        

Housing units        

Business Starts        

Qualifications         

Infrastructure/ 
Transport 

       

Land (in Ha)        

Other        

 

Category Description Short term Medium term Long term 

Zero Carbon     

Environmental     

Social Value     

 
Narrative/assumptions 
Explain the assumptions that you have used to inform your estimation of the outputs. 

 

20. Outcomes (max 150 words plus the table)  

List the outcomes in the table below that would be expected to follow as a result of the enabling or 
un-locking impact of this investment. These outcomes should be supported by credible evidence 
and/or research as appropriate. For outcomes that are difficult to quantify numerically a narrative 
can be used. The following provides examples, the list is not prescriptive, nor comprehensive, you 
should use the table to provide relevant information for your project. 
 
If you have scaled down options for your project provide clear information on each option 
 

Category Description Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 6+ 

Jobs (indirect)        

Housing units        

Skills         

Infrastructure        

Land (in Ha)        

Other        

Page 68



 
 

Category Description Short term Medium term Long term 

Zero Carbon     

Environmental     

Social Value     

 
 

Narrative outcomes/assumptions 
Explain any assumptions that you have used to inform your estimation of the outcomes. 

 

21. Funding request to GFirst LEP (max 100 words) NB Capital funding only 
State how much in total you are asking for (minimum £1m) and when it would be required.  
If you have scaled down options for your project provide clear information on each option. 
Provide summary details of all funding in sections 22-23 

 

22. Financial: Total project costs: capital and revenue (max 250 words) 

 
If you have scaled down options for your project provide clear information on each option 

 
List the main capital and revenue costs required over the lifetime of the project, including the 
amount you are requesting from the LEP. Explain whether these costs are a first estimate, or based 
on worked projections.  
 
Where known, provide the source(s) of the funding required to meet these costs.  
 
Projects that leverage in funds from other sources, with a significant level of private sector 
investment and/or match funding from other bodies are viewed positively.  List the sources and 
amounts of other public and /or private funds that will be leveraged into the project, and are 
integral to it. State the degree to which this is committed.  

 
Are you seeking any other public funding for this proposed project not listed above? (Please give 
name of funding body, fund and amount sought.) 

 
Provide summary details of all funding in section 23 

 

Page 69



23. Financial Summary:  All information must relate to FINANCIAL YEARS 
 

 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

Funding 
request (LEP) 

   

Total private 
match funding 

   

Total other 
public funding 

   

Other    

Totals    

 
REVENUE 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025 + Total 

Total Private 
match funding 

       

Total other 
public funding 

       

Other        

Totals        
 

24. Project viability with reduced funding: (max 150 words) 
Explain if your project or parts of your project would be viable and deliverable if you were allocated 
less than you have asked for. Provide specific details. 
If you have scaled down options for your project provide clear information on each option in each 
section indicated above 

 

25. Financial Sustainability: (max 200 words) 

Explain how and from where any required revenue funding has been/will be obtained. How else will 
you ensure the project is sustainable? Describe the extent to which the project will continue to 
deliver impact in the longer term. 

 

26. Financial: Follow on investment  (max 200 words) 
Provide details of any further investments, both public and private that you expect to follow, where 
there is an association with your project, and in particular, where you believe that your project will 
have a positive influence on the securing of this future investment. 

 

27. Timeline: (max 150 words) All information must relate to FINANCIAL YEARS 

Provide an estimated time line (by quarter, e.g.Q2 2020/21) for your project :   
Once investment completed (by Dec 2021) the ongoing delivery of the project must be for a 
minimum of 5 years. This information must be realistic and achievable.  

 
 Start End 

Refining Business Case   

Project Planning & Development   

Due Diligence and LEP Board Approval   

Capital Investment    

Implementation / Delivery   

Page 70



Project Completed   

 
 

28. Risks (max 250 words) 

Please explain the issues and risks identified for the project and how these will be managed and 
mitigated. (Add more rows as needed) 

 

 Risks Description Owner Probability  Impact  Mitigation 

     

     

 

29. Procurement and State Aid: (max 150 words) 

Liability for State Aid compliance is with the project promoter. Explain your state aid position for 
this project, or, if not available, the measures you will take, if successful, to ensure compliance with 
state aid and procurement rules.  

 

30. Governance and delivery arrangements: (max 300 words) 

Provide detail on the governance and delivery arrangements for this project including 
organisational and project levels of responsibility, capacity to deliver, project planning, inter 
dependencies, partners etc. N.B. We are expecting Government to focus funding on projects that 
can be delivered on time and to budget so this section is very important. 

 

31. Key changes to your expression of interest submission: (150 words max)  

Please note that this document (your full business case) will form your submission, and should 
include any information previously contained in your expression of interest.  Please note here any 
changes (if applicable) that you have made to your proposal since this was appraised. 

  

 
 
Declaration by Applicant 
 
I certify to the best of my knowledge the information submitted on this form is true and correct. 
 
I have the appropriate level of responsibility to submit this Business Case on behalf of my 
organisation. 
 
 

Signed (on behalf of Promoter)  

 

 

 ______________________    

Page 71



 

Date :- 
 
Name and title 
 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
Status of signatory (e.g. CEO, company director, authorised agent) 
 
_________________________________________________________ 

Business Case submission details (see list on front page) 

Sent to: (Name of organisation / person ) 

Date submitted: 

 
 

Page 72


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Work Plan
	5 District member feedback
	6 Golden Valley Project
	7 GFirst LEP Item

